Earth Negotiations Bulletin
A RepE)r'Ei n.g -Se;vi.ce. fo-r I.En-vi ;oan;er;t and Ise:/el.of)rr;er;t Iile;\:]o.tia.\ti(.)ns
Onlineat http://www.iisd.ca/climate/sp13/

Vol. 12 No. 145

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD)

Friday, 8 September 2000

HIGHLIGHTSFROM FCCC SB-13
INFORMAL MEETINGS

THURSDAY, 7 SEPTEMBER 2000
Delegatesto the informal meetings preceding SB-13metina

Plenary session to take stock of progress. They also met to
consider: the mechanisms, FCCC Article 4.8 and 4.9 and Protocol
Article 3.14 (adverse effects); compliance; capacity building; tech-
nology transfer; land use, land-use change and forestry
(LULUCEF); paliciesand measures (P& Ms); and guidelines under
Protocol Articles5 (methodological issues), 7 (communication of
information) and 8 (review of information).

PLENARY

Delegatesmet in Plenary to hear brief progressreportsfromthe
Chairsof theinformal groups. SBI Chair Ashe thanked delegates
and the Chairs of the groupsfor their positive work. The G-77/
CHINA expressed the hope that further areas of convergence
would continueto emerge during SB-13, and stressed the need for
abalanced package of decisionsat COP-6. The US said hewas
“somewhat concerned” at the slow pace of progressin some
groups, and called for concentrated effortsto keep the processon
track.

INFORMAL MEETINGS

ADVERSE EFFECTS: Participants considered the section of
the Co-Chairs' text on theimpact of implementation of response
measures. On technological development and economic diversifi-
cation, the US suggested including specific referenceto support for
least devel oped countries. On theissue of future workshops, dele-
gates stressed the need for these to be clearly focused. SAMOA,
supported by the EU, BELIZE, and JAMAICA, questioned the
utility of vulnerability indices, while EGY PT supported them.

On the section on Protocol Article 3.14, the US, with the EU
and several other developed countries, noted that it dealt primarily
with the impact of response measures, and suggested merging it
with the previous section that directly addressed thisissue. The G-
77/CHINA, SAUDI ARABIA, and anumber of other developing
countries repeated their proposal for two separate draft decisions,
oneon FCCC Article4.8 and 4.9, and one on Protocol Article 3.14.
BELIZE, speaking for AOSI S, said these paragraphs did not
addressitsconcerns. AUSTRALIA, POLAND, theUS, EU and
other Annex | Parties expressed reservations on a paragraph
inviting Annex | Partiesto provideinformation on, inter alia,
existing market imperfections and subsidiesin the energy sector.
SAUDI ARABIA said the paragraph should be retained.

MECHANISM S: Partiescommenced discussion on the
consolidated text. The G-77/CHINA supported separate decisions
with individual chapeaus on the three mechanisms, while

CANADA, the EU and other Annex | countries supported three
decisions under one chapeau. The G-77/CHINA, opposed by
CANADA, NEW ZEALAND, the EU and US, advocated
extending therigors of the CDM to JI. The G-77/CHINA stressed
the need to address the nature and scope of the mechanisms.
CANADA, while accepting the centrality of FCCC Article 3 (Prin-
ciples), cautioned against going too far into the nature and scope.
The EU cautioned against defining new principles. The G-77/
CHINA, opposed by the US, urged that the adaptation fund draw
from all three mechanisms.

Partiesthen reviewed the draft decision on guidelinesfor
implementation of Protocol Article6 (J1). SAMOA, for AOSIS,
opposed by NORWAY, POLAND and CANADA, proposed
removing reference to these being “ guidelines.” The US, opposed
by AOSIS, proposed that revision to the guidelines be taken by
consensus. Parties were unabl e to agree on whether to retain text
relating to equity, comprehensiveness, transparency, climate
change effectiveness, fungibility, and sharing of proceeds.

PROTOCOL ARTICLESS, 7 & 8: Delegates continued
discussing guidelinesunder Article 7.1 (inclusion of supplemen-
tary information in annual inventories). The US, opposed by the
EU and AUSTRALIA, proposed del eting the section on adjust-
mentsin accordance with Article 5.2 (adjustments), maintaining
that reporting should be the responsibility of the review team, not
the Party. SAM OA noted thework on the concept of atrue-up
period in the compliance group, and said the group on Articles
5,7,and 8 should consider technical constraintsonitslength.

On consideration of Article 7.2 (inclusion of supplementary
information in national communications), the US, NORWAY,
SAUDI ARABIA and GERMANY questioned thetiming for the
submission of national communications and where this should be
treated. On national registries, the USidentified the importance of
the discussions on the mechanisms for the work in this group.

SAUDI ARABIA suggested that the national communications
of Annex | Partiesinclude an evaluation of the extent to which
individual CDM projects have assisted non-Annex | Partiesto
achieve sustainable development. NORWAY, supported by NEW
ZEALAND, AUSTRALIA and the US, said thiswas not realistic.

COMPLIANCE: Delegates continued deliberation on the Co-
Chairs' proposals. On submission of questionsto the compliance
body, the G-77/CHINA said questions of compliance could be
raised by aParty with respect toitself or another Party. The US said
aParty should be ableto refer questions with respect to another
Party’s compliance only to thefacilitation branch. AUSTRALIA
suggested that apart from the questions raised in the expert review
teams' (ERT) reports, questions could be raised by a Party only
with regard toitself. The G-77/CHINA emphasized therole of the

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by Angela Churie <angela@iisd.org>, Jon Hanks <jon.hanks@iiiee.lu.se>, Lavanya
Rajamani <lavanya@iisd.org>, Malena Sell <malena@iisd.org>, Chris Spence <chris@iisd.org> and Lisa Schipper <lisa@iisd.org>. The Digital Editor is Andrei Henry

<andrei@iisd.org>. The Editor is Pamela S. Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Director of 1I1SD Reporting Servicesis Langston James "Kimo" Goree VI
<kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Canada (through CIDA and DFAIT), the
United States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forests and Landscape (SAEFL), the United Kingdom Department for International Development
(DFID), the European Commission (DG-ENV) and the Rockefeller Foundation. General Support for the Bulletin during 2000 is provided by the German Federal Ministry
of Environment (BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Ministry of Environment and
theMinistry of Foreign Affairsof Austria, the Ministriesof Foreign Affairsand Environment of Norway, the Ministriesof Foreign Affairsand Environment of Finland, the
Government of Australia, and BP Amoco. Thisissuewas prepared in cooperation withthe UNFCCC Secretariat. The Bulletin can be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org>
and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. |1SD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba
R3B 0Y 4, Canada. The opinions expressed in the Earth Negotiations Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11SD and other funders.
Excerpts from the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this
material incommercia publications, contact the Director of 11SD Reporting Services. Electronic versionsof the Bulletin are sent to e-mail distribution listsand can befound
ontheLinkagesWWW server at http://www.iisd.ca. The satelliteimage wastaken above Lyon ©2000 The Living Earth, Inc. http://livingearth.com. For information on the
Earth Negotiations Bulletin, send e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.




Friday, 8 September 2000

Vol. 12 No. 145 Page 2

ERTs and suggested that the rel ati onship between the COP and
ERTsbetaken into account. The EU, opposed by CHINA,
supported arolefor the FCCC Secretariat. SAUDI ARABIA,
supported by the US, highlighted the need to reflect Protocol
Article 8(3) (ERTsto report to the COP/MOP) in the provision.

Onthe preliminary examination of questions, the G-77/CHINA
said the functionsit envisaged at this stage were to ensure that the
question is supported by sufficient information and isnot de
minimis, and to direct the caseto a particular branch. She said this
task should be undertaken by a plenary of the compliance
committee. The UK said the screening process should simply be an
organizational stageto ensure that the relevant branch receivesthe
case. He suggested creating a bureau of the compliance committee
consisting of two members, representing the enforcement and facil-
itative branches, to perform thisfunction. The RUSSIAN FEDER-
ATION suggested that all questions should go automatically to the
facilitation branch. The US said there should be two functions, one
related to alocation and the other to substance. The allocation
function would be performed by abureau of the complianceinstitu-
tion, and the substantive screening, which would be necessary only
for casesreferred to the enforcement branch, would be undertaken
by the enforcement branch.

CAPACITY BUILDING: Participants began consideration of
therevised Chair’stext on capacity building in devel oping coun-
tries. In responseto the G-77/CHINA’s query on timing for consid-
eration of adraft decision on capacity building, Chair Ashedrew
attention to decision 10/CP5, which callsfor Partiesto synthesize
elements of adraft framework for capacity building at SB-12 for
consideration at SB-13. He noted that a contact group would be set
up during SB-13to start deliberations on adraft decision. The EU,
theUSand CANADA stressed the need to ensure consistency with
the capacity building aspects of other discussions on technology
transfer and adaptation.

On purposes, the EU asked what review processwould be
established. The G-77/Chinainquired what the basisfor such a
review would beand if thiswould constitute an additional reporting
requirement. AUSTRALIA said capacity building should be
designed to facilitate monitoring and implementation.

On demonstration projects, the G-77/CHINA said thesewere
not critical inidentifying needs and stressed that sufficient infor-
mation had aready been submitted. The EU said that while demon-
stration projects could be useful, lessons should be drawn from
existing activities. He underscored the importance of aresults-
based approach. AUSTRALIA highlighted the need for an appro-
priate enabling environment for capacity building.

TECHNOLOGY TRANSFER: Participants considered the
sections on technol ogy information and enabling environmentsin
the draft text on aframework to facilitate development and transfer
of technology. They heard presentations by the FCCC Secretariat
on apossible framework for atechnology transfer system, and by
the Climate Technology Initiative on itswebsite.

The G-77/CHINA underscored Parties’ obligation to submit
information on how they areimplementing their commitments.
Regarding gathering information on technology needs and avail -
ability, sheraised the question of how Partiesfacilitate accessto
technologies and what the conditions of accessare. KENYA
suggested that countries that have submitted national communica-
tions befacilitated to conduct their technology needs assessments
noting that the second national communication may not take place
until 2006. With the G-77/CHINA, she noted with concern that
GEF isallocating fundsto technol ogy needs assessmentsinstead of
national communications.

NEW ZEALAND supported the concept, in principle, of a
clearinghouse and emphasi zed the use of existing institutions. The
US highlighted limitations with one-stop shops and supported the
establishment of an international, rather than regional and sub-
regional, clearinghouse. CHINA, PERU, and MALAY SIA urged
moving ahead by focusing on practical measures.

LULUCEF: Luiz Gylvan MeiraFilho, Brazilian Space Agency,
outlined theimplications of different approachestoincluding
LULUCF onthe ability of Partiesto mitigate climate change as
required under the Protocol . He noted the current temporary uptake
of carbon in the biosphere dueto natural effects, and said that under
afull carbon accounting approach, Annex | countrieswould be
allowed to emit more than under abusiness-as-usual scenario.
Delegates then continued discussing the compilation text of
country-specific dataand information as submitted by Parties. The
EU noted the gapsin existing data, stressing that datawas acrucial
input to the negotiating process. AUSTRALIA noted that Annex |
countries had the capacity to make adequate carbon measurements,
and that the quality was continually improving. Co-Chair Thor-
geirsson then summarized thework carried out thusfar, and identi-
fied key unresolved issues, including: separating human-induced
effectsfrom natural uptake of carbon; the package of eligible addi-
tional activitiesunder Article 3.4; and limitations of creditsand
debits.

POLICIESAND MEASURES: Co-Chair Richard Muyungi
(Tanzania) introduced draft conclusions and elementsfor adraft
decision on “best practices’ in policies and measures (P& Ms). The
G-77/CHINA asked the Co-Chair to postpone discussion on the
draft text pending internal G-77/CHINA consideration. Parties
made general commentsrelated to, inter alia: continuing work into
the future; avoiding reference to issues under discussion in other
groups; and ensuring that the outcomeisfocused on hel ping to
implement the provisions of Protocol Article 2 (P& Ms).

IN THE CORRIDORS

Delegates have been commenting on theirony of thetiming of
the crippling French transport strike. Attendance at some of the
sessions was affected on Thursday, and there was speculation on
the possibleimpact of the strike on the arrival of key delegates, and
on the already slow pace of the deliberations. Several observers
suggested that the strike begs the question: isthe public really
prepared to pay for climate policies?

THINGSTO LOOK FOR TODAY

ADVERSE EFFECTS: Thisgroup will meet at 10:00 amin
the Amphitheatre to resume discussions on Protocol Article 3.14.

ARTICLESS5, 7 & 8: Thegroup will meet at 10:00 am and
5:00 pm in Salon Pasteur to resume consideration of Article 7.

CAPACITY BUILDING: Thisgroupwill meet at 12:00 pmin
Rhone 3B to consider countries with economiesin transition and
will conveneat 5:00 pm in Amphitheatre to discuss non-Annex |
country capacity building.

MECHANISMS: Thisgroup will meet at 3:00 pmin Audito-
rium Lumiereto work through the text and discuss all aspects of
mechanisms, including nature and scope.

LULUCEF: Deliberationswill continue at 3:00 pminthe
Amphitheatre.

COMPLIANCE: Delegateswill discuss procedures of the
compliance body at 7:30 pm in the Amphitheatre.

TECHNOLOGY TRANSFER: Discussionswill resume at
7:30 pmin Salon Pasteur.



